IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

UNTI ED STATES OF AMERI CA : CRI M NAL ACTI ON
V.

: NO. 96-412-1
JOHN F. MORAN : (98- CV- 681)

ORDER—MEMORANDUM

AND NOW this 5th day of August, 1998 defendant John F.
Moran’s petition to vacate, set aside or correct sentence, 28
U.S.C. § 2255 (1994), is denied.

On Cctober 23, 1996 Moran pl eaded guilty to two counts of
aiding the filing of false federal incone tax returns in violation
of 26 U.S.C. § 7206(2) (Counts 2 and 4).? On February 14, 1997
def endant noved to set aside his guilty plea on the ground of
i nnocence, which notion was denied on February 20, 1997. On

February 21, 1997 defendant was sentenced to 24 nont hs of custody.®

! Probable cause does not appear to exist for a
certificate of appealability. 28 U S C 8§ 2253(c)(1)(B) (1994).

2 The indictnent also charged Morran’s ex-w fe, Bonnie
McNamara, with two counts of filing false tax returns in violation
of 26 U S.C. 7206(1) (Counts 1 and 3). On Septenber 19, 1996
McNamara pl eaded guilty to both counts and, on February 14, 1997
she was sentenced to five years probation.

®In addition to custody, the sentence included one year

of supervised release, a special assessnent of $100, and
restitution of $42,002. On February 26, 1997 defendant appeal ed
hi s sentence on the ground that his conduct did not warrant a two-
| evel enhancenent wunder U S.S.G 8§ 2T1.4(b)(2) for wuse of
sophi sticated neans to i npede di scovery. On Cctober 27, 1997 the
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In the calculation of his total offense | evel, he was not given a
two- | evel reduction for acceptance of responsibility under U S. S. G
8§ 3El. 1(a) because of his contention that he was not responsible
for the charged conduct. Tr. at 51, Feb. 21, 1997.

The petition argues that (1) defendant’s counsel was
i neffective because she did not informhimthat he could | ose the
two-| evel reduction if he denied his guilt and noved to w t hdraw
his guilty plea; and (2) absent the notion to withdraw his guilty
plea, there was no basis for the denial of the reduction.
Petition, at 5.

An ineffective assistance claimrequires —

First, the petitioner nust show that his or
her counsel’s performance was deficient —
that, wunder all the <circunstances, the
attorney’s representation fell bel ow an
obj ective standard of reasonabl eness. .
Claimants nust identify specific errors by
counsel, and we nust indulge a strong
presunption that counsel’s conduct was
reasonabl e.

Second, t he petitioner nmust show
prej udi ce. . . [ Al petitioner nmnust
denonstrat e a reasonabl e probability that, but
for the wunprofessional errors, the resul t
woul d have been different.

Frey v. Fulconer, 974 F.2d 348, 358 (3d Cr. 1992), cert. denied,

507 U.S. 954, 113 S C. 1368, 122 L. Ed.2d 746 (1993).
Here, ignoring the obvious incongruity between a deni al

of guilt and acceptance of responsibility, and even assun ng

3(...continued)
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counsel's ineffectiveness, * defendant is unable to show prejudice
—i.e., that he woul d have recei ved the reducti on had he not noved
towthdraw his guilty plea. Application note 3 to Section 3E1.1
of the guidelines states:

Entry of a plea of gquilty prior to the

comrencenent of trial conbined wthtruthfully
adm tting the conduct conprising the offense

of conviction . : : wi || constitute
significant evi dence  of acceptance  of
responsibility . . . . However, this evidence

may be outwei ghed by conduct of the defendant

that is inconsistent with such acceptance of

responsibility. A defendant who enters a

guilty plea is not entitled to an adjustnent

under this section as a matter of right.
During the presentence investigation —before noving to w thdraw
his guilty plea —defendant nade statenents to the the probation
office blamng his ex-wife for the crinmes charged. Presentence
report, 8 29. At his sentencing —after the notion was denied —
defendant again attenpted to explain his crines by attributing
fault to his ex-wife and by disputing the tax-loss cal cul ati on.

Tr. at 8-12, Feb. 21, 1997. This conduct was sufficient to negate

acceptance of responsibility. See United States v. O'tiz, 878 F. 2d
125, 128 (3d Cir. 1989) (defendant who pleaded guilty was not

entitled to reduction for acceptance of responsibility where he

* The government’s response to the petition includes an
affidavit by Carol Carson, defendant’s counsel at the guilty plea
and sentenci ng hearings, stating that she advi sed def endant not to
nove to withdraw his guilty plea and that in doing so he risked
| osing the reduction for acceptance of responsibility. Response,
exh. a, 91 4-6. Defendant disputes his attorney’s account. Reply,
at 1.

At his sentencing hearing, but prior tothe inposition of
sentence, defendant stated that he believed Carson had done an
“outstanding job.” Tr. at 50, Feb. 21, 1997.
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made statenments to probation officer attenpting to minimze his

roleinthe transaction); see also United States v. G eene, 71 F. 3d

232, 234-35 (6th Gr. 1995) (sanme); United States v. Dillard, 43
F.3d 299, 305-06 (7th Cir. 1994) (same). >

Edmund V. Ludw g, J.

®> Defendant continued to deny responsibility after
sentence was i nposed. On March 4, 1997 he noved for new counsel,
asserting that his counsel had “convinced” himto plead guilty.
T 4. In his reply brief, he stated that he never agreed to the
stipulation of facts in his qguilty plea agreenent, reply, 1 5
despite his clear testinony to the contrary at the guilty plea
hearing, tr. at 3, Cct. 23, 1996.
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